


FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Statements in this annual report, other than those
of historical fact, are forward-looking statements
about the future performance of Sysmex that are
based on management’s assumptions and beliefs in
light of information currently available, and involve
both known and unknown risks and uncertainties.
Actual events and results may differ materially
from those anticipated in these statements. 
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Business Fields
Sysmex delivers total solutions in the field of clinical laboratory testing, including hematology and

urinalysis, providing customers with instruments, reagents, and its Laboratory Information System, as well

as service and support.While building its operating base and actively pursuing strategic alliances, the

Company is working to expand its field of operations by developing industrial applications for particle

analysis technology and focusing on post-genome research in order to discover new testing and

diagnostic technologies.

Scale of Operations
In its core field of hematology, Sysmex holds the number-one share of the Japanese market and the

number-two share of the global market. Aiming to supply products that meet market requirements in

different regions, Sysmex has built up a global network of research and development facilities,

production bases, and marketing offices at 29 sites in 17 countries including Japan. In April 2002,

International Reagents Corporation (at that time, listed on the First Section of the Osaka Securities

Exchange) became a wholly owned subsidiary.This development has served to enhance the collective

strength of the Sysmex Group, contributing to consolidated net sales of ¥57,253 million in fiscal 2002.

Long-Term Vision
Sysmex has established “A Unique & Global Niche Company” as its long-term vision, aiming to grow and

develop as a distinctive global enterprise.The Company is working to become a leader in the healthcare

testing market, a field where it possesses a competitive advantage, by offering customers solutions that

take advantage of its advanced technological capabilities and unique strengths.

This logo symbolizes our determination, and reflects
our business approach of always looking to the future
and anticipating future needs.
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Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars 2003/2002

For the years ended March 31, 2003 2002 2001 2003 % Change

For the year:

Net sales ¥57,253 ¥47,532 ¥38,817 $477,108 20.4%

Operating income 5,299 3,417 2,975 44,158 55.0

Net income 3,125 1,308 1,363 26,042 138.9

At year-end:

Total assets ¥66,449 ¥66,502 ¥55,219 $553,742 (0.1)%

Total shareholders’ equity 43,325 35,577 34,103 361,042 21.8

Yen U.S. Dollars

Per share data:

Net income (basic) ¥    132.20 ¥     58.80 ¥     61.68 $  1.10 124.8%

Net income (diluted) 121.81 54.88 57.54 1.02 122.0

Shareholders’ equity 1,879.51 1,697.71 1,627.49 15.66 10.5

Cash dividends applicable to the year 25.00 22.00 22.00 0.21 13.6

Value indicators:

Return on equity (%) 7.9 3.8 4.0

Return on assets (%) 4.7 2.1 2.6

Price-earnings ratio (times) 15.92 35.56 42.55

Price-book value ratio (times) 1.12 1.31 1.71
Note: 1. U.S. dollar amounts represent translations of Japanese yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥120 = U.S. $1, the approximate rate of 

exchange on March 31, 2003.
2. Per share data: Certain retroactive adjustments of previously reported per share information have been made to conform with current 

method (see Note p. Per Share Information on page 28 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Sysmex Corporation and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Net Sales
(¥ Millions)

1999     2000     2001     2002     2003

38,337 37,224 38,817

47,532

57,253

Operating income
Operating income margin

Operating Income/
Operating Income Margin
(¥ Millions/%)

1999     2000     2001     2002     2003

3,400
3,618

2,975

3,417

5,299

8.9
7.7 7.2

9.3

Net Income
(¥ Millions)

1999     2000     2001     2002     2003

913

1,838

1,363 1,308

3,125

9.7



Review of Fiscal 2002 and Report on
Business Activities
First, how was the Company’s performance during the

year under review?

In April 2002, International Reagents Corporation (IRC)

was fully subsidized through an exchange of stock. We

worked to reorganize the operating structure of the

entire Group in order to respond to customers’ diverse

needs by providing total solutions for diagnostic testing

incorporating clinical laboratory testing instruments,

reagents, and our Laboratory Information System (LIS), as

well as service and support. As a result, sales increased

steadily both in Japan and overseas. Factoring in the

effect of the weaker yen, consolidated net sales totaled

¥57,253 million, an increase of 20.4 percent compared to

the previous fiscal year. In terms of income, while

continuing to invest aggressively in R&D in the field of life

sciences, where growth is expected, we worked to

contain selling, general and administrative expenses,

including reducing overlapping costs due to the

acquisition of IRC. The resulting increase in revenues,

supported by the depreciation of the yen, led to an

increase in operating income of 55.0 percent compared

to the previous fiscal year to ¥5,299 million. Furthermore,

net income rose substantially due to lower income taxes

associated with the capital reduction of IRC, increasing

138.9 percent compared to the previous fiscal year to

¥3,125 million. These were record high levels for both

sales and earnings.

Note: All figures in the text are based on consolidated financial

data.

INTERVIEW WITH PRESIDENT AND CEO 
HISASHI IETSUGU
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President and CEO Hisashi Ietsugu

Aiming to accelerate the pace
of Group management
reforms and become a global
niche company.

In fiscal 2002, the year ended March 31, 2003, Sysmex

was able to achieve record-high sales and earnings. The

Company also formulated a Sysmex Group mid-term

management plan for the years leading up to 2005,

designed to use the comprehensive power of the Group

to contribute to the creation of a more prosperous and

healthy society. In the following interview, President

and CEO Hisashi Ietsugu discusses Sysmex’s

performance during fiscal 2002 and the Company’s

future business strategies.
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What were Sysmex’s results in Japan?

In Japan, the business environment has become

increasingly challenging, as the healthcare system

undergoes drastic reform, including reductions in

treatment fees and pharmaceutical prices and revisions

to the burden of medical expenses for the elderly. Amid

these conditions, sales of laboratory testing reagents and

other products rose, supported by enhanced sales and

service capabilities, an expanded product lineup, and an

increased number of equipment installations resulting

from the integration of IRC. This contributed to a

significant increase in earnings, with net sales rising 23.7

percent compared to the previous fiscal year to ¥30,452

million.

Note: In connection with the integration of IRC as a wholly

owned subsidiary, IRC’s sales and income were reflected in

consolidated financial statements for only the second half of

fiscal 2001, but for the full year of fiscal 2002.

Can you give an overview of the performance of the

Company’s overseas operations?

In North and South America, sales of hematology

equipment were favorable and the number of equipment

installations increased, boosting sales of reagents. Sales

of hemostasis and urinalysis products were also steady,

and sales of LIS also increased. With the added effect of

the depreciation of the yen, net sales increased 11.9

percent compared to the previous year to ¥6,377 million.

In Europe, sales of hematology and hemostasis

equipment were solid due to the promotion of LIS-based

proposals, and reagent sales grew along with the

increasing number of clinical laboratory testing

equipment installations. A substantially weaker yen also

had an effect, resulting in net sales of ¥14,549 million, an

increase of 20.3 percent compared to the previous year.

In the Asia-Pacific region, sales of hematology

equipment and reagents increased in China. Combined

with increased sales of LIS by New Zealand-based Sysmex

Delphic Limited, which became a consolidated subsidiary

at the end of the previous fiscal year, net sales totaled

¥5,875 million, a 14.9 percent increase compared to the

previous year. 

Establishment of a Group Mid-Term
Management Plan toward a New Stage
You have announced a mid-term management plan for

the Sysmex Group. What are its basic contents?

In 2001, we came up with “A Unique & Global Niche

Company” as the long-term vision for the Sysmex Group.

As a distinctive global company, Sysmex aims to become

a leading company in healthcare testing, a field where we

Net sales ¥80 billion

Ordinary income ¥9 billion

ROE 8.0%

2005 Targets (Consolidated)

● ●

●

●

●

●

GROUP MID-TERM PLAN: FY2005 TARGETS

The leading company of Total Solutions
Provider in the diagnostics field

The leading company in diagnostics field 
in Japan and Asia

An acknowledged "technology-rich" company 
applying post-genome confirmative diagnosis
and other technologies(Exchange rates: US$1 = ¥120, 1 euro = ¥125)

Vision for 2005



possess a competitive advantage, by offering customers

solutions that take advantage of our advanced

technologies and unique strengths.

Under our new mid-term management plan, we aim to

accelerate the pace of Group reforms, generate new value

and achieve sustainable growth, targeting net sales of ¥80

billion, ordinary income* of ¥9 billion and ROE of 8.0

percent for fiscal 2005, the year ending March 31, 2006. At

the same time, we have established what will be our

position in 2005.

*Ordinary income is pretax recurring profit.

Could you give us the details of Sysmex’s positioning in

2005?

We have established three key challenges that we are

working to achieve by 2005.

First, in the field of clinical laboratory testing, we have

adopted a new business model, working to become the

leading provider of total solutions that effectively integrate

instruments, reagents, and LIS, as well as service and

support. The market environment is changing due to the

aging of the population, innovations in medical

technology, and changing attitudes of patients towards

medical care. To respond to continuing diversification

among customer needs, it is increasingly important for

Sysmex to develop its business based around total

solutions that contribute to problem-solving for

customers. Sysmex is the only company that offers

comprehensive proposals combining instruments,

reagents, and LIS, as well as service, support, and financing.

As such, Sysmex will expand its product lineup by

concentrating investment on developing products integral

to our total solutions and pursuing corporate alliances, as

well as enhancing service and support functions and

improving its ability to tailor solutions to the needs of

customers around the world.

Second, Sysmex aims to become the leading company in

the clinical laboratory testing market in Asia, including

Japan. In Japan, reforms to the healthcare system are

under way, and there is a strong need for improved

efficiency and quality of care. We plan to take advantage of

our sales and service capabilities, which are the best in

Japan and strengthened further with the acquisition of IRC,

expand our product lineup through in-house development

and alliances, and contribute to customers’ problem-

solving as a provider of total solutions incorporating LIS.

Moreover, economic growth is expected to fuel the

expansion of healthcare markets in Asia. In particular,

higher economic standards in China have contributed to

rapid development of the healthcare infrastructure, and in

recent years there has been a strong emphasis on building

facilities to improve the quality of care. In China, Sysmex

has already completed the construction of a sales and

service network and businesses in the fields of

hematology, hemostasis and urinalysis, and entered the

biochemistry market in March 2003. Moving forward, we

plan to enter the field of immunology and expand our

lineup of IT-related products, while improving our brand

image and our ability to offer comprehensive proposals to

customers by further developing our existing program of

educational and academic activities focused on quality

control systems for checking the accuracy of testing

results.
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Third, we aim to become a “tech-rich” company by

utilizing post-genome technology to develop definitive

diagnosis methods for cancer and other diseases. With

technological innovation giving rise to new types of

diagnostic products and creating new markets, Sysmex is

committed to ongoing research and development efforts,

primarily through activities at the Central Research

Laboratories. The integration of IRC’s reagent

development technology, as well as joint research and

development projects with universities and other

companies, will strengthen Sysmex’s technical base

supporting the continuous supply of products in newly

emerging fields. Furthermore, we are aiming to improve

marketability in existing fields, working to expand our core

technologies by reinforcing basic technologies such as

image analysis.

What are other priority issues for the Company?

We have recently begun direct sales and service in the

United States, the largest diagnostics market in the world.

Until now, Sysmex’s U.S. operations have been based on

indirect sales and service offered through alliances, but

recently the lack of qualified laboratory technicians in the

United States has contributed to a growing need for

automated systems and IT applications. To respond to this

need and establish the company as the global leader in the

hematology field, Sysmex is reorganizing its operating

structure in the U.S., primarily through the establishment

of a direct sales and service network and the formation of

mergers with local subsidiaries. Increasing contact with

customers in the world’s largest market will enable Sysmex

to reflect their needs in the development of new products.

Under the new system we will become a truly global

company capable of delivering highly specialized solutions

that fit customers’ requirements.

Sysmex’s basic policy is to distribute its earnings

according to results. At the same time, we have made

continuous, stable returns to shareholders a top

management priority. February 2003 marked the 35th

anniversary of Sysmex’s establishment, and in appreciation

of the continuing support of our shareholders, we added a

commemorative dividend of ¥3.00 per share, raising the

annual dividend to ¥25.00 per share.

The Sysmex Group will make a unified effort to

accomplish the goals laid out in our new medium-term

management plan, while remaining committed to

satisfying the expectations of our shareholders and

investors. I hope I can count on your continuing support. 
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Hisashi Ietsugu

President and CEO



SYSMEX AT A GLANCE
Business Domain

POC Testing: 2.6%
Point-of-care tests can be carried out in operating rooms,
intensive care units or at the patient’s bedside, rather than
in central laboratories, to enable faster diagnosis and
treatment.

New Businesses: 3.4%
Particle Analysis for Industrial Applications 
and Healthcare

Sysmex is focusing on industrial applications for particle
analysis technology, developed based on hematology
technology, which is one of the Company’s core strengths.
It is used in many industrial processes including research and
quality control of copier toner and ceramic particles. Sysmex
is also expanding into the field of health care. 

Information Technology (IT): 3.9%
The healthcare industry is moving towards the establishment
of IT-based medical information networks, which contribute
to more effective diagnoses by collecting and analyzing data
from clinical tests and consolidating this information into a
convenient database. In the future, Sysmex will continue to
make use of IT to promote the establishment of local
healthcare networks made up of hospitals and clinics, and
develop remote medical care capabilities.

Net Sales
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Market Shares and Sales Breakdown
Number-two Global Share 
in Hematology

Number-one Domestic Share 
in Hematology

Consolidated Net Sales 
by Geographic Area

Consolidated Net Sales
by Business

20%

60% Overseas
47%

Japan
53%

Medical 
Devices

34%
Reagent

50%

Maintenance 
Services

and others
16%

Clinical Laboratory Testing: 90.1%
Hematology
Measuring the number, type and size of white blood cells
(leukocytes), red blood cells (erythrocytes) and platelets
(thrombocytes) and checking hemoglobin concentration. Red
blood cell count and hemoglobin levels are measured for
evidence of anemia or polycythemia, white blood cell count is
used to determine leukemia or various types of inflammation
and platelet count is used to check blood clotting function.

Hemostasis
Examining the plasma taken from blood in order to test for
clotting abnormalities, which can indicate hemophilia or
thrombosis, as well as hepatic function.

Immunochemistry
Testing for the presence of the hepatitis virus or a history of
hepatitis or other viral infections. Also involves checking for the
appearance of specific proteins in the blood that signal the
presence of cancer, and measuring insulin in order to diagnose
diabetes.

Biochemistry
Checking the enzymes, sugars and proteins in blood serum and
blood plasma, while examining the body’s nutritional status
and liver and kidney function. Also involves testing for diseases
such as diabetes and arteriosclerosis.

Urinalysis/Fecal Occult Blood Testing, etc.
Urinalysis testing entails checking for signs of sugar, protein
and blood in urine, while also looking for the presence of
urinary stones, examining kidney function and testing for
diabetes. Fecal occult testing involves using an occult blood
test to check for bleeding from the digestive tract, cancer or
the presence of parasites or their eggs.

Blood Gas/Electrolyte
Collecting arterial blood to measure the concentration of
oxygen and carbon dioxide as well as the pH level, in order to
evaluate lung function and determine if oxygen is circulating
throughout the body. In addition, the test measures the
number of sodium, potassium and calcium ions in blood in
order to check that the body’s hormone levels are in balance.

Bacteriology 
Testing urine, blood, spinal fluid, pus and other bodily fluids for
pathogenic bacteria, in order to detect the bacteria that may
be causing symptoms such as fever, and to make a diagnosis
and determine the most effective antibiotic. (Non-Sysmex
Field)

9.0%

4.8%

6.9%

There are two types of diagnostic tests: clinical laboratory tests, in which blood, urine or cell samples are taken from the body and examined; and tests
in which the body is examined directly, such as X-rays, electrocardiograms (ECG) or electroencephalograms (EEG). Sysmex offers a broad range of prod-
ucts, services and support for laboratory tests, from the necessary instruments and reagents to the Laboratory Information System (LIS).

The global clinical laboratory testing market, which was valued at US$23,615 million in 2000, is projected to expand at an annual rate of 5.9 percent
until 2005. As of 2000, Sysmex was ranked ninth in the world in the overall clinical laboratory testing field, and commands the number-two share (approx-
imately 20%) of the global hematology market and the top share (approximately 60%) of the Japanese market.

54.0%

15.5%



November 2002 Partnership with Dade-Behring covering coagulation-related products extended
Sysmex and Dade Behring Inc. agreed to extend their global sales agreement covering the
coagulation-related products of both companies to December 2010.

March 2003 Sysmex and Bayer sign a supply and distribution agreement covering  urinalysis products in
the U.S. 
Sysmex and Bayer HealthCare LLC, based in the U.S., signed a supply and distribution
agreement for sales and service of Sysmex’s UF-100 urine sediment analyzer and transport system.

April 2003 Sysmex signs joint research and development agreement with Roche for molecular diagnostics
as well as minimally invasive and non-invasive technologies 
Sysmex and F. Hoffman La Roche Ltd., based in Switzerland, signed a joint research and development
agreement, based on the assumption that any new businesses generated will be collaborative,
covering molecular diagnostics, including cancer-related diagnostics, as well as minimally invasive
and non-invasive technologies.

May 2003 Sysmex signs joint research and development agreement with America’s number-one cancer
research institution, the University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center
Sysmex signed an agreement with the University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center, the leading
cancer treatment facility in the United States, to begin clinical study of a new diagnostic method for
predicting the effectiveness of anti-cancer drugs.

November 2002 Sysmex acquires exclusive worldwide rights for cervical cancer detection method
Sysmex acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the cervical cancer detection technology owned by 
U.S. -based Matritech, Inc., and has begun integrating it with its own proprietary technology to
develop an automated testing system for cervical cancer.

April 2003 Sysmex and Toshiba announce development of minimally invasive technology for self-
measurement of blood glucose that does not require blood sampling
Sysmex and Toshiba Corporation jointly developed minimally invasive technology for self-
measurement of blood glucose levels by combining Sysmex’s minimally invasive tissue fluid
extraction technology and Toshiba’s optical sensing technology.

May 2003 Sysmex launches world’s first whole-blood HTLV-I antibody testing reagent
Sysmex began sales in Japan of Ranream HTLV-I, a clinical laboratory testing reagent that
measures the level of HTLV-I (human T-cell leukemia virus type-1) antibodies in whole blood.

January 2003 Overseas development of diagnostic testing network support system begins
Sysmex introduced the Sysmex Network Communication Systems (SNCS) in the European market
as a first step toward global deployment of SNCS.

March 2003 Sysmex begins manufacture and sales of biochemical reagents in China
In China, Sysmex received authorization to manufacture and started sales of 23 types of clinical
chemistry reagents, used for biochemical testing of diabetes, liver function and kidney function.

May 2003 New Sysmex Group mid-term management plan launched
With “A Unique & Global Niche Company” as its long-term vision, Sysmex introduced initiatives to
accelerate the pace of Group reforms, generate new value and achieve sustainable growth during the
period to fiscal 2005.

July 2003 Sysmex reorganizes U.S. operations
To establish Sysmex as the global leader in the hematology field, the Company reorganized its
operating structure in the U.S. through the establishment of a direct sales and service network and
mergers with local subsidiaries.

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

Topics: 2002    2003▲
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efficiency of the increasingly complex testing environment by

integrating a diverse range of specialized technologies. The

Company has expanded its business to encompass

systemization of the entire testing laboratory, including a

transport system for lab results and a data management

system, in order to provide total solutions that help customers

identify and resolve problems.

IT Development: A Global Development
Organization

Medical institutions in advanced countries are pursuing

improvements in the efficiency and quality of care. The use of

information technology will be crucial in resolving these 

issues.

In response, Sysmex is moving forward with the global

development of LIS, which links diagnostic information

received from various instruments into a network so that it can

Core Competence: A Broad Range of
Original Technologies

Through the development of hematology equipment,

Sysmex has established strengths in the area of sensing

technology – a combination of various electrical, mechanical,

biological, chemical, data processing and other technologies –

as well as biology and software development. The Company’s

greatest asset is its ability to create an optimum balance

between these advanced technologies in order to develop

products that meet customers’ needs, such as instruments,

reagents, and the Laboratory Information System (LIS).

In addition, Sysmex is contributing to improving the overall

TECHNOLOGY

R&D Capabilities Supporting

the Creation of New Core

Technologies
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In March 2003, Sysmex signed an agreement with the University of Texas

M.D. Anderson Cancer Center, the leading cancer hospital in the United

States, to begin clinical study of Sysmex's cell cycle profiling technology for

determining the effectiveness of anti-cancer drugs that would enable

individualized chemotherapy. Sysmex's Central Research Laboratories were

the first to create a cell cycle profiling system, which simultaneously

measures expressions and activities of 20 parameters of cell cycle machinery

molecules. Sysmex's cell cycle profiling technology has already proven

successful in determining effectiveness of anti-cancer drugs by using cell

lines. Through highly reliable clinical evaluation made possible by joint

research with M.D. Anderson, the Company is working to quickly establish

the new diagnostic technology and develop the related equipment and reagents in order to achieve the goal of

improving patients’ quality of life.

be easily shared and accessed. To do so, the Company has built

a global software development network by establishing

development subsidiaries in Japan, the U.S., Belgium, China,

New Zealand, and Slovakia in Eastern Europe.

At present, a standard model of LIS, developed by Sysmex

Molis S.A. in Belgium, is being created in order to meet the

specific regional needs of users in other regions. In June 2002,

the product was launched in Japan under the name MOLIS

(Modular Open Laboratory Information System). In the future,

Sysmex plans to establish MOLIS as a core product in its total

solutions business, aiming to launch it in markets around the

world.

Expanding Our Core Technologies:
Establishing New Screening Technology in
the Field of Life Sciences

Sysmex established the Central Research Laboratories in

April 2000 to discover core technologies that will play a vital

role in the twenty-first century. The facility conducts research

activities in the field of life sciences to establish new testing

methods in areas such as definitive diagnosis, tailor-made

therapies, and risk evaluation. Particular emphasis has been

placed on cancer diagnostics, and Sysmex has already

announced the development of technology for the rapid

detection of metastatic cancer of the lymph nodes and an

Case Study 1: Diagnostic Technology for Determining the
Effectiveness of Anti-Cancer Drugs Developed through Joint
Research with M.D. Anderson
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automated cervical cancer screening system.

Aiming for further growth, Sysmex plans to increase R&D

expenditures to 10 percent of net sales by 2005, in order to

spur the development of more specialized and innovative

technologies. 

In addition, Sysmex participates in the Millennium Project

initiated by the Japanese government, conducting research

with industrial and educational institutions on the functional

analysis of cellular proteins.

Furthermore, the Company works to improve the efficiency

and speed of its R&D activities through joint research. One

such example is the development of a diagnostic method for

determining the effectiveness of cancer drugs through joint

research with the M.D. Anderson Cancer Center in the United

States.

Sysmex remains committed to establishing new testing

methods aimed at improving patients’ quality of life.

Moving into New Business Areas:
Non-Invasive Measurement Technology
and Scientific Instruments

Sysmex’s technology extends into fields beyond diagnostics.

One example is non-invasive measurement. In 1999, Sysmex

was the first in the world to successfully develop technology

While pursuing its own research on genetic testing, focusing on the field of cancer,

Sysmex also acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the cervical cancer detection

technology owned by the American biotechnology company Matritech, Inc. in

November 2002.

Cervical cancer is the second most common cancer among women, and there are

approximately 500,000 new cases every year. If the cancer could be detected earlier,

more patients could be cured. The development of more accurate cervical cancer

testing technology will be a key issue in reducing the mortality rate and increasing patients’ quality of life.

In the future, the automated cervical cancer testing system which Sysmex has begun developing will make it possible to

rapidly and accurately detect cancer cells by combining Matritech’s patented nuclear matrix protein NMP179 for cervical cancer

with Sysmex’s proprietary technologies (flow cytometry, image analysis and reagent development). The system will automate

the visual examination process currently done by cytologists and is scheduled to be commercialized and launched in fiscal

2006.

Case Study 2: Development of a Cervical Cancer
Screening System through Technical Collaboration with
U.S.-Based Matritech
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that uses near-infrared spectroscopic imaging to measure

hemoglobin concentrations in peripheral blood vessels without

blood sampling. Sysmex commercialized the technology as the

Astrim peripheral blood vessel monitoring device, and worked

to create a market for use in monitoring athletic training and in

research on health foods. In the future, the Company will

highlight the fact that Astrim does not require blood sampling,

which is the product’s greatest advantage, and plans to

investigate using the device for examining groups such as

young children and expectant mothers.

Sysmex is moving into industrial fields with the integration

of two core technologies: particle analysis for industrial

applications and image processing. These technologies allow

analysis of particles in photocopier toner, electronic materials,

pharmaceuticals and cosmetics at the micron level.

A sales agreement with UK-based Malvern Instruments Ltd.,

a leading company in the field of particle analysis, has enabled

Sysmex to expand its lineup of particle analyzers.

Sysmex and Toshiba Corporation jointly developed minimally invasive technology

for self-measurement of blood glucose levels by combining Sysmex’s minimally

invasive tissue fluid extraction technology and Toshiba’s optical sensing technology.

Diabetes patients typically measure their own blood glucose levels by performing a

finger-prick or using another body part to obtain a drop of blood. The discomfort

caused by the need to repeat this procedure several times a day was the incentive for

developing a new type of painless blood glucose measurement device.

The minimally invasive technology for self-measurement of blood glucose levels

developed jointly by Sysmex and Toshiba measures the amount of glucose in tissue fluid rather than blood samples. This

improves the quality of life for patients who no longer have to suffer the pain of blood sampling. Sysmex was responsible for

developing technology for painless and stable extraction of tissue fluid samples, while Toshiba handled the development of

biosensor chips and detection unit hardware for accurately measuring the minute amounts of glucose contained in the

samples.

Development of the technology for practical use is currently underway in fiscal 2003, with a market launch scheduled for

fiscal 2005.

Case Study 3: Minimally Invasive Blood Glucose
Self-Measurement Technology Developed
through Joint Research with Toshiba
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A prototype of the painless blood glucose
measurement device



A Stable Manufacturing Network:
Pursuing Strict Quality Management and
Cost-Competitive Production
Instrument Production

An expansion of the Kakogawa Factory, Sysmex’s main

production facility for instruments, was completed in

September 2002, accommodating heightened demand for

instruments resulting from global expansion of the

Company’s operations. The upgrade has doubled

production capacity for the factory’s flexible production

lines, which are capable of immediately responding to

demand for a variety of instruments, from large to small.

In addition, it has strengthened the Company’s ability to

manufacture major components and optical units requiring

sophisticated production technology in-house.

Thorough quality control, including production and

process management systems that use information

technology, supports cost-competitive production.

Reagent Production

With the integration of IRC, Sysmex has already built a

reagent production system that combines the strengths of

both companies. Sysmex’s Ono Factory manufactures

hematology and other chemical reagents, and IRC’s Seishin

Factory manufactures biological reagents used in fields such

as biochemistry and immunology. Sysmex has also

established reagent production facilities in Germany, the

U.S., Brazil, China, India and Singapore in order to ensure a

PRODUCTION

A Cost-Competitive,

High-Quality 

Production Network
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timely and stable supply of reagents to overseas customers.

Furthermore, in February 2003 Sysmex began production of

IRC’s line of clinical chemistry reagents at its Chinese

reagents production facility, and is distributing these

reagents in China and throughout Asia.

Quality Control and Environmental Activities

All of Sysmex’s instrument and reagent production

facilities are thoroughly committed to quality control and

environmental protection.

Both the Kakogawa Factory and the Ono Factory adhere to

strict quality control systems based on the Ministry of

Health, Labour and Welfare’s Good Manufacturing Practice

(GMP) quality control standards for medical devices, as well

as ISO 9001 international quality control standards and ISO

13485 and EN 46001 quality guarantee standards for

medical devices.

The Kakogawa Factory, the Ono Factory and the

Neumünster Factory of Sysmex Europe GmbH, Sysmex’s

European subsidiary, have acquired ISO 14001 certification,

an international standard for environmental management

systems.

IRC’s Seishin Factory has already received ISO 9001

certification, and is currently working to achieve ISO 14001

certification. The Sysmex Group will continue to actively

address quality control and environmental issues.

As part of ongoing reforms to its global supply system, Sysmex is working to enhance the speed and efficiency of the Ono

Factory and the Seishin Factory of wholly owned subsidiary IRC in order to expand the reagent production capacity of the entire

Sysmex Group. The goal of these efforts is to cut production lead time (the time between stocking of materials and delivery of the

finished product) in half and substantially reduce costs and inventories.

By the first half of fiscal 2004, the two factories will have defined roles: the Ono Factory will function as the equipment-based

factory, with improved manufacturing facilities such as automated production lines, while the Seishin Factory will be designated

the knowledge-based factory, maintaining the Company’s manufacturing technology and expertise. Both factories will utilize and

develop the know-how of Sysmex’s overseas reagent production facilities in the U.S., Germany, China, Singapore and Brazil.

Through these measures, Sysmex is working to

build a system for the timely supply of reagent

products of even higher quality at lower cost

throughout the world, while further enhancing the

collective strength of the entire Group.

Upgrading the Ono and Seishin Reagent Production
Facilities to Accommodate Overseas Sales

Ono Factory Seishin Factory



Core Competence
Strong Operating Base in Asia

Sysmex is targeting Asia as a future growth market, and is

aiming to become the leading company in the region in the

field of clinical laboratory testing. Of the world’s top ten

clinical laboratory testing companies, only Sysmex is based

in Asia, giving it a distinct geographic advantage. With 14

sales and service bases in seven countries, including China

and Singapore, and reagent production facilities in China,

India and Singapore, Sysmex works to tailor its operations to

the specific market needs of each region where it conducts

business.

Global Development

Since its establishment, Sysmex has focused on expanding

its presence overseas, developing operations closely linked

to needs of markets in particular regions. At present, Sysmex

has a global network of 24 overseas affiliates that serve as

regional R&D, production and marketing bases, and exports

products to more than 125 countries around the world.

In the U.S. and Europe, in addition to establishing its own

regional headquarters and local affiliates, Sysmex has

expanded its sales and service network through the

formation of business alliances with companies such as

Roche and Dade Behring to increase market share. The

Sysmex brand is highly respected overseas, demonstrated

by the fact that Sysmex products are used in the top five

hospitals in the U.S. and the Company holds the top share of

the European hematology market. The Laboratory

GLOBALIZATION

Strengthening Our

Global Business

Infrastructure
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Information System (LIS) developed by Sysmex Molis S.A.

has been well received, mainly in Europe, and a standard

model is being created to meet the specific regional needs

of users elsewhere. Sysmex is also working to strengthen the

development and support capabilities of Sysmex Molis,

aiming for further global development of LIS. In addition,

Sysmex is expanding its operations into new regions,

through measures such as the establishment of service

centers in Eastern Europe, Russia and Africa. 

As a global company, Sysmex will continue to expand its

sales and service network, developing optimal marketing

activities for each region that include making use of

alliances.

The United States is the largest diagnostics market in the

world, accounting for approximately 40 percent of the total

world market. Sysmex has recently reorganized its U.S.

operations, primarily through the merger of two of its local

subsidiaries, to establish a direct sales and service framework

and promote the integration of information technology into

diagnostics products. These efforts will allow Sysmex to meet

a growing need for systemization due to the recent shortage

of skilled laboratory technicians in the U.S., and respond more effectively to customer needs as they evolve along with

advances in information technology, while becoming the global leader in the field of hematology.

Case Study 1: Reorganizing U.S. Operations
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■ INTERNATIONAL REAGENTS 
CORPORATION

■ MEDICA CO., LTD.

■ TOA MEDICAL CO., LTD.

■ SYSMEX LOGISTICS CO., LTD.

■ RA SYSTEMS CORP.

JAPAN

2

1

3

4
5 6

910
8

7

11

13

14
15

12

16

17
18

19 20
21

24

22

23

OVERSEAS Sales Production R&D Holding Company

North and South America
1 SYSMEX AMERICA, INC. ● ●

2 SYSMEX REAGENTS AMERICA, INC. ●

3 SYSMEX DO BRASIL INDUSTRIA E COMERCIO LTDA. ● ●

Europe
4 SYSMEX EUROPE GMBH ● ●

5 SYSMEX DEUTSCHLAND GMBH ●

6 WELLTEC GMBH ●

7 SYSMEX UK LIMITED ●

8 SYSMEX BELGIUM S.A. ●

9 SYSMEX MOLIS S.A. ● ●

10 SYSMEX FRANCE S.A.R.L. ●

11 SYSMEX MOLIS IT SERVICES SLOVAKIA, S.R.O. ●

Asia-Pacific
12 JINAN SYSMEX MEDICAL ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. ●

13 SYSMEX HONG KONG LIMITED ●

14 SYSMEX SHANGHAI LTD. ●

15 SYSMEX INFOSYSTEMS CHINA, LTD. ● ●

16 SYSMEX SAN TUNG CO., LTD. ●

17 SYSMEX SINGAPORE PTE LTD. ● ●

18 SYSMEX (MALAYSIA) SDN BHD ●

19 SYSMEX TRANSASIA BIO-MEDICALS PRIVATE LTD. ● ●

20 SYSMEX (THAILAND) CO., LTD. ●

21 MED-ONE CO., LTD. ●

22 SYSMEX DELPHIC LIMITED ● ●

23 WHOOSH TECHNOLOGY PTY LIMITED ●

24 PT. SYSMEX INDONESIA ●

Sysmex regards China as a market that has tremendous growth potential, and

establishing a foothold in the region was made a priority early on.

In China, a country experiencing remarkable economic growth, a higher standard

of living has contributed to rapid development of the health care infrastructure,

and in recent years there has been improvement in the quality of care. Sysmex was

quick to build a sales, production and development network, and has already

established businesses in the fields of hematology, hemostasis and urinalysis. The

Company is also preparing to enter the biochemistry market, and started manufacturing and selling 23 types of

biochemistry reagents in China in February 2003. In the future, Sysmex plans to lay the foundation for entering the field of

immunology and also to expand its range of IT products. In addition, the Company will improve its ability to offer total

solutions to customers by further developing its existing program of educational and academic activities focused on

quality control.

Case Study 2: Expanding Into New Business
Fields in China

Overseas Consolidated
Subsidiaries and Affiliates



Core Competence
The integration of International Reagents Corporation

(IRC) into the Sysmex Group has created the leading service

and support network in Japan, comprising seven branch

offices and thirteen sales offices. Acquiring IRC’s lineup of

biochemistry and immunology products and uniting not

only the two companies’ instruments and reagents, but also

service and support for the Laboratory Information System

(LIS) as well as financing, have enabled the Company to offer

an even greater range of total solutions.

Overview of the Service and Support
Network
24-Hour Technical Support Center

The Technical Support Center is staffed 24 hours a day by

knowledgeable specialists who respond to inquiries or

problems from customers regarding Sysmex products.

In addition to basic questions about instruments and

reagents, they are also able to discuss detailed scientific

issues such as measurement results. 

Development of SNCS

The Sysmex Network Communication Systems (SNCS) is a 

new network support system that offers remote

maintenance and quality control by linking customers using

Sysmex products with the Technical Support Center via the

Internet. This system offers an environment that minimizes

downtime and enables customers to use Sysmex products

with confidence. 

Based on the success of SNCS in Japan, Sysmex now aims

to deploy the system worldwide, beginning with the

establishment of call center facilities and other required

support functions in the European market during the current

fiscal year.

Launch of a POC Website

Because point-of-care (POC) testing can be carried out at a

patient’s bedside, it allows doctors to diagnose and treat

illnesses faster. As a result, it contributes to improved

efficiency of care and patient satisfaction, and is regarded as

a future growth market. Sysmex has launched the first

website in Japan devoted to POC, entitled “Sysmex POC:

Close to Patients.” The website introduces the advantages of

POC testing and scientific information to the greater public,

and aims to benefit hospitals in improving management

efficiency and patient services.

The Sysmex Network Communication Systems (SNCS) is a new net-
work support system that offers remote maintenance and quality
control by linking customers using Sysmex products with the
Technical Support Center via the Internet.

Customers’ analysis equipment is linked at all times to the SNCS
server at Sysmex’s Technical Support Center, which provides services
such as Online QC, real-time quality control and monitoring for mal-
functions, and online support through remote access. In addition,
customers can call toll-free anytime to reach operators who connect
them with technical specialists or scientific experts to provide special-
ized support or quickly dispatch field engineers. Sysmex has also
established a network support system to ensure that customers’ daily
operations proceed smoothly, such as Web Information Services,
which supplies in-depth information on various issues.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL STRATEGY

The management objective of Sysmex Corporation and its group of consolidated subsidiaries and

affiliates (the “Companies”) is to maximize the corporate value of the Companies by increasing their

collective market value, and by maintaining and improving its credit rating. 

To increase market value, Sysmex believes it must sustain long-term growth and share its manage-

ment objectives with shareholders, users, customers, employees and all stakeholders. For this purpose,

Sysmex is focusing on measures such as timely disclosure, enhancing its corporate web site, and holding

periodic information meetings on financial results. 

Sustaining medium- and long-term growth requires having sufficient scale (critical mass) to recoup

the R&D investment necessary for succeeding in global competition with other companies and to

absorb selling, general and administrative expenses. In addition to scale, asset and capital efficiency, as

well as a sound debt-to-equity structure are also essential. Sysmex’s debt currently has an “A-” (single A

minus) rating from Rating and Investment Information, Inc. To maintain and improve this rating,

Sysmex seeks to expand its scale as well as flexibly build a strong financial base by giving due considera-

tion to the balance between sales and income, and assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity.

Specifically, Sysmex employs asset turnover ratio, return on assets (ROA; calculated using ordinary

income) and return on equity (ROE) as the primary metrics in balancing scale and efficiency by opti-

mizing the combination of sales and income, and assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity. 

In its 18th Medium-Term Management Plan, which began in April 2003, the Companies are aiming

to achieve consolidated net sales of ¥80 billion, consolidated ordinary income of ¥9 billion, and ROE of

8.0 percent. 

Ordinary income is a line item used under generally accepted accounting principles in Japan. It represents income before
extraordinary items and income taxes.

OVERVIEW OF RESULTS

In the healthcare testing market, the principal business of the Companies, large-scale corporate con-

solidation has already taken place overseas. Sysmex pioneered the consolidation of the Japanese health-

care testing market by forming an alliance with and taking a 33 percent equity stake in International

Reagents Corporation (IRC) in December 2000. Sysmex made a tender offer for IRC’s remaining equity

in August 2001 and added IRC to the scope of consolidation. Sysmex acquired the remaining equity of

IRC through an exchange of shares on April 1, 2002, making it a wholly owned subsidiary. In May 2002,

IRC transferred its sales and service operations to Sysmex, and has since specialized in the development

and production of reagents. Sysmex thus restructured its business and strengthened its product lineup,

which has supported the implementation of a new business model that entails combining instruments,

reagents, and its Laboratory Information System, in addition to service and support. 

As a result, Sysmex achieved record-high consolidated net sales, operating income and net income for

fiscal 2002. Compared to the previous fiscal year, the assets turnover ratio increased to 0.86 times from

0.78 times; ROA (calculated using ordinary income) increased to 8.0 percent from 6.6 percent; and

ROE increased to 7.9 percent from 3.8 percent. 

Net Sales
Supported by strong sales of blood analyzers, diagnostic reagents and coagulation products, consoli-

dated net sales increased ¥9,721 million, or 20.4 percent, over the previous fiscal year to ¥57,253 mil-
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lion. Sales in Japan increased ¥5,828 million, or 23.7 percent, to ¥30,452 million, and sales outside Japan

increased ¥3,893 million, or 17.0 percent, to ¥26,801 million. The primary factor behind the increase in

sales in Japan was the full-year contribution from sales of IRC products, while only second-half sales

were consolidated in the previous fiscal year. Higher sales in every region supported the substantial

growth in overseas sales, as did the positive effect of the weaker yen. Sales outside Japan accounted for

46.8 percent of total net sales. 

Significant increases in segment sales supported sales growth in Japan. Sales of immunology products

increased ¥1,906 million, or 51.4 percent, to ¥5,618 million. Sales of biochemistry products increased

¥1,431 million, or 91.0 percent, to ¥3,004 million, due mainly to the consolidation of full-year results

for IRC. Sales of hematology products increased ¥1,038 million, or 9.0 percent, to ¥12,628 million,

while sales of coagulation products increased ¥1,306 million, or 39.4 percent, to ¥4,622 million. 

Sales in the Americas expanded ¥679 million, or 11.9 percent, year-on-year to ¥6,377 million. Sales of

coagulation products increased ¥427 million, or 30.2 percent, to ¥1,842 million, while sales of the

Laboratory Information System increased ¥206 million, or 349.2 percent, to ¥265 million. 

Sales in Europe increased ¥2,451 million, or 20.3 percent, to ¥14,549 million. Sales of hematology

products increased ¥1,768 million, or 19.0 percent, to ¥11,103 million, and sales of coagulation prod-

ucts rose ¥643 million, or 55.6 percent, to ¥1,802 million. 

In the Asia-Pacific region, in China, total sales of hematology products increased ¥348 million, or

19.4 percent, to ¥2,140 million. Sysmex began charging sales commissions and other items to total sales

in China during fiscal 2002. As a result, sales net of sales commissions and other items increased ¥120

million, or 4.0 percent, to ¥3,143 million. In the Asia-Pacific region excluding China, sales of hematol-

ogy products increased ¥278 million, or 17.7 percent, to ¥1,858 million, and sales of the Laboratory

Information System increased ¥224 million to ¥228 million. As a result, total sales increased ¥642 mil-

lion, or 30.7 percent, to ¥2,732 million.

Cost of Sales and SG&A Expenses
Cost of sales rose ¥4,097 million, or 20.7 percent, over the previous fiscal year to ¥23,867 million as a

result of the increase in net sales. As a percentage of net sales, cost of sales increased marginally to 41.7

percent. Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses increased 15.4 percent to ¥28,087 million,

but improved to 49.0 percent as a percentage of net sales from 51.2 percent in the previous fiscal year.

This improvement was due mainly to Sysmex’s efforts to control and reduce costs by restructuring its

business through the conversion of IRC into a wholly owned subsidiary. 

Income
Operating income increased ¥1,882 million, or 55.0 percent, to ¥5,299 million, reflecting the increase

in sales as well as lower SG&A expenses. The ratio of operating income to net sales improved to 9.3 per-

cent from 7.2 percent for the previous fiscal year. 

Other expenses — net increased to ¥950 million from ¥343 million for the previous fiscal year. This

was due in part to a foreign exchange loss of ¥56 million, compared to a foreign exchange gain of ¥544

million for the previous fiscal year. While loss on write-down of investment securities decreased to ¥393

million from ¥423 million for the previous fiscal year, loss on disposal of property, plant and equip-

ment, which is included in other — net, increased to ¥333 million from ¥223 million for the previous

fiscal year due to the renovation of the Kakogawa Factory. Other — net also increased due to a loss on

termination of retirement benefit plans totaling ¥180 million, and the absence of a royalty settlement of

¥132 million recorded in the previous fiscal year.
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Consequently, income before income taxes and minority interests increased ¥1,275 million, or 41.5

percent, to ¥4,349 million. In connection with the December 2002 capital reduction of IRC totaling

¥4,300 million, under Japan’s corporate tax law, the Companies incurred an investment loss due to cap-

ital reduction of a subsidiary totaling ¥3,686 million, and incurred a constructive dividend totaling

¥2,460 million. Income taxes net of deferrals therefore decreased to ¥1,239 million. As a result, net

income increased ¥1,817 million, or 138.9 percent, to ¥3,125 million. Net income per share increased to

¥132.20 from ¥58.80 in the previous fiscal year. 

R&D Expenses
Sysmex is aggressively conducting research and development in life science, a field where growth is

expected in the future. Total research and development expenses increased ¥840 million from the previ-

ous fiscal year to ¥4,970 million, but represented 8.7 percent of net sales, unchanged from the previous

fiscal year. 

LIQUIDITY AND SOURCES OF CAPITAL

Fund Procurement and Liquidity Management
Sysmex raised approximately ¥6.0 billion with the public issue of 2.2 million shares in connection

with its public listing in November 1995. In March 2000, Sysmex issued convertible bonds, raising ¥5.0

billion for the first time since the public offering. In December 2000, the Companies raised ¥5.0 billion

with a long-term bank loan. All of the consolidated subsidiaries included among the Companies use

external bank loans as necessary to obtain working capital, and Group companies also have access to

long-term funding through intracompany loans. 

Sysmex funds working capital mainly with short-term bank loans. For long-term capital require-

ments such as investment in property, plant and equipment, the Companies determine the funding

method after taking into account the term of the obligation and risk. In the near term, however, the

Companies plan to emphasize equity financing. 

Financial Position
Total assets as of March 31, 2003 were ¥66,449 million, a decrease of ¥53 million, or 0.1 percent, from

a year earlier. While net sales increased, the Companies worked to reduce and restrain trade receivables

and inventories. Interest-bearing liabilities decreased ¥713 million, or 6.1 percent, to ¥10,893 million

due to factors including repayment of long-term debt, and total liabilities declined ¥1,503 million, or

6.1 percent, to ¥23,071 million. As a result, the ratio of interest-bearing liabilities to total liabilities and

shareholders’ equity decreased 1.1 percentage points to 16.4 percent. 

Shareholders’ equity increased ¥7,748 million, or 21.8 percent, from a year earlier to ¥43,325 million.

The main reason for the increase was the issuance of new shares due to the exchange of shares with IRC.

The increase in shareholders’ equity was offset by the reduction in minority interests to ¥53 million

from ¥6,351 million a year earlier due to the conversion of the minority interest of the Companies in

IRC to shareholders’ equity that resulted from the exchange of shares. Total liabilities and shareholders’

equity therefore decreased marginally, resulting in a substantial increase in the ratio of shareholders’

equity to total assets to 65.2 percent from 53.5 percent at the end of the previous fiscal year. As of

March 31, 2003, shareholders’ equity per share was ¥1,879.51. 
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Capital Expenditures and Depreciation
Capital expenditures declined ¥138 million, or 5.6 percent, from the previous fiscal year to ¥2,317

million. A primary factor was a decrease in investment related to the renovation of IRC’s Seishin

Factory. Depreciation and amortization increased ¥126 million, or 4.3 percent, from the previous fiscal

year to ¥3,070 million, mainly because of an increase in depreciation expenses related to property, plant

and equipment resulting from the completion of the renovation of IRC’s Seishin Factory. 

Cash Flows
As in the previous fiscal year, an increase in cash flow from operating activities compensated for

decreases in cash flow from investing activities and financing activities. Cash and cash equivalents at the

end of the period therefore increased ¥1,071 million, or 11.7 percent, from the end of the previous fiscal

year to ¥10,253 million. 

Net cash provided by operating activities increased ¥1,369 million, or 32.3 percent, compared to the

previous fiscal year to ¥5,603 million, mainly due to the ¥1,275 million increase in income before

income taxes and minority interests. The interest coverage ratio improved to 29.0 times, from 21.5

times in the previous fiscal year.

Net cash used in investing activities increased ¥148 million, or 7.0 percent, compared to the previous

fiscal year to ¥2,260 million. The main factors were net purchases of investment securities totaling ¥319

million, compared to net proceeds from sales of investment securities in the previous fiscal year totaling

¥13 million. Cash provided by other — net also decreased ¥327 million, or 50.1 percent, to ¥326

million.

Net cash used in financing activities increased ¥1,466 million, or 258.1 percent, year-on-year to

¥2,034 million, primarily due to debt reduction. Net decrease in short-term bank loans totaled ¥223

million, compared to a net increase of ¥828 million in the previous fiscal year. Moreover, net repay-

ments of long-term debt increased to ¥1,387 million from ¥864 million for the previous fiscal year.

FORECAST OF RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2004

The forecast of results for the current fiscal year may change due to factors such as economic condi-

tions in the key countries and regions where the Companies conduct business (Japan, North America,

Asia-Pacific), movements in exchange rates, trends in healthcare costs, and healthcare system reforms.

For the year ending March 31, 2004, the Companies expect increases in net sales and operating income,

and a decrease in net income. This forecast assumes average exchange rates of ¥120 to US$1 and ¥125 to

1 euro.

RISK FACTORS

Sysmex incurs foreign exchange risk related to transactions such as the import and export of raw

materials, parts and finished products. Although the Companies enter into forward foreign exchange

contracts to hedge the foreign exchange risk of receivables and payables generated by such transactions,

changes in exchange rates influence Sysmex’s results. 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

March 31, 2003 and 2002 2003 2002 2003

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 10,253 ¥ 9,182 $ 85,442

Short-term investments (Note 4) 156 143 1,300

Notes and accounts receivable:

Trade notes 3,236 3,938 26,967

Trade accounts 14,059 13,919 117,158

Affiliates 94 72 784

Others 525 440 4,375

Allowance for doubtful notes and accounts (125) (114) (1,042)

Inventories (Note 5) 11,362 11,201 94,683

Deferred tax assets (Note 9) 1,516 1,511 12,633

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,789 624 14,908

Total current assets 42,865 40,916 357,208

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Land (Note 6) 6,001 5,903 50,008

Buildings and structures (Note 6) 14,251 12,726 118,758

Machinery and equipment 4,752 4,384 39,600

Furniture and fixtures 12,241 14,930 102,008

Construction in progress 22 1,855 184

Total 37,267 39,798 310,558

Accumulated depreciation (19,625) (21,590) (163,541)

Net property, plant and equipment 17,642 18,208 147,017

Investments and Other Assets:

Investments in and advances to affiliates (Note 4) 28 65 233

Investment securities (Note 4) 1,675 1,766 13,958

Software 1,947 1,934 16,225

Goodwill 148 934 1,233

Deposits 868 953 7,233

Deferred tax assets (Note 9) 440 498 3,667

Other assets 836 1,228 6,968

Total investments and other assets 5,942 7,378 49,517

Total ¥ 66,449 ¥ 66,502 $ 553,742

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Sysmex Corporation and Subsidiaries
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Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

2003 2002 2003

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:

Short-term bank loans (Note 6) ¥ 1,497 ¥ 1,369 $ 12,475

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) 6,856 1,665 57,133

Notes and accounts payable:

Trade notes 997 1,300 8,308

Trade accounts 4,301 4,500 35,842

Affiliates — 109 —

Construction and other 1,738 2,409 14,484

Income taxes payable 230 1,165 1,917

Accrued expenses 2,204 1,872 18,367

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 9) — 1 —

Other current liabilities 981 709 8,174

Total current liabilities 18,804 15,099 156,700

Long-Term Liabilities:

Long-term debt (Note 6) 2,002 8,029 16,683

Liability for retirement benefits (Note 7) 893 319 7,442

Negative goodwill 360 — 3,000

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 9) 407 321 3,392

Other long-term liabilities 605 806 5,041

Total long-term liabilities 4,267 9,475 35,558

Minority Interests 53 6,351 442

Shareholders’ Equity (Notes 8 and 13):

Common stock: 74,836,000 shares authorized, 
23,033,423 shares issued in 2003 and 
20,909,200 shares issued in 2002 5,509 3,385 45,908

Capital surplus 8,737 5,561 72,808

Retained earnings 28,784 26,234 239,867

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 91 91 758

Foreign currency translation adjustments 268 311 2,234

Total 43,389 35,582 361,575
Treasury stock - at cost:  25,318 shares in 2003 and 51 shares in 2002 (64) (5) (533)

Total shareholders’ equity 43,325 35,577 361,042

Total ¥66,449 ¥66,502 $553,742
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

Years Ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 2003 2002 2003

Net Sales ¥57,253 ¥47,532 $477,108

Operating Costs and Expenses:

Cost of sales 23,867 19,770 198,892

Selling, general and administrative 28,087 24,345 234,058

Total operating costs and expenses 51,954 44,115 432,950

Operating Income 5,299 3,417 44,158

Other Income (Expenses):

Interest and dividend income 148 183 1,233

Interest expense (152) (169) (1,267)

Foreign exchange gain (loss) (56) 544 (466)

Write-down of investment securities (393) (423) (3,275)

Other — net (497) (478) (4,141)

Other expenses — net (950) (343) (7,916)

Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests 4,349 3,074 36,242

Income Taxes (Note 9):

Current 893 2,273 7,442

Deferred 346 (366) 2,883

Total income taxes 1,239 1,907 10,325

Net Income before Minority Interests 3,110 1,167 25,917

Minority Interests in Net Loss of Subsidiaries 15 141 125

Net Income ¥ 3,125 ¥ 1,308 $ 26,042

Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Amounts per Common Share (Note 11):

Net income ¥132.20 ¥58.80 $1.10

Diluted net income 121.81 54.88 1.02

Cash dividends applicable to the year 25.00 22.00 0.21

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Sysmex Corporation and Subsidiaries
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’EQUITY
Sysmex Corporation and Subsidiaries

Millions of Yen

Unrealized Foreign 
Number of Gain (Loss) on Currency Total

Common Shares Common Capital Retained Available-for-sale Translation Treasury Shareholders’
Years Ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 Issued Stock Surplus Earnings Securities Adjustments Stock Equity

Balance, April 1, 2001 20,909,200 ¥3,385 ¥5,561 ¥25,480 ¥(165) ¥(158) ¥34,103

Net income 1,308 1,308

Cash dividends, ¥22.00 per share (480) (480)

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors (74) (74)

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 256 256

Foreign currency translation adjustments 469 469

Increase in treasury stock ¥ (5) (5)

Balance, March 31, 2002 20,909,200 3,385 5,561 26,234 91 311 (5) 35,577

Net income 3,125 3,125

Cash dividends, ¥22.00 per share (483) (483)

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors (79) (79)

Loss on disposals of treasury stock (9) (9)

Effect on beginning retained earnings 
of applying the cost method of accounting 
to an investment in affiliates previously 
accounted for using the equity method (4) (4)

Foreign currency translation adjustments (43) (43)

Conversion of convertible bonds 403 1 1

Increase in treasury stock (59) (59)

Issuance of new shares for stock-for-stock 
transaction 2,123,820 2,124 3,175 5,299

Balance, March 31, 2003 23,033,423 ¥5,509 ¥8,737 ¥28,784 ¥ 91 ¥ 268 ¥(64) ¥43,325

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

Unrealized Foreign 
Gain (Loss) on Currency Total

Common Capital Retained Available-for-sale Translation Treasury Shareholders’
Stock Surplus Earnings Securities Adjustments Stock Equity

Balance, March 31, 2002 $28,208 $46,342 $218,616 $758 $2,592 $ (41) $296,475

Net income 26,042 26,042

Cash dividends, $0.18 per share (4,025) (4,025)

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors (658) (658)

Loss on disposals of treasury stock (75) (75)

Effect on beginning retained earnings of 
applying the cost method of accounting to 
an investment in affiliates previously accounted 
for using the equity method (33) (33)

Foreign currency translation adjustments (358) (358)

Conversion of convertible bonds 8 8

Increase in treasury stock (492) (492)

Issuance of new shares for stock-for-stock transaction 17,700 26,458 44,158

Balance, March 31, 2003 $45,908 $72,808 $239,867 $758 $2,234 $(533) $361,042

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

Years Ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 2003 2002 2003

Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 4,349 ¥ 3,074 $ 36,242
Adjustments for:

Income taxes — paid (1,848) (2,241) (15,400)
Depreciation and amortization 3,070 2,944 25,583
Write-down of investment securities 393 423 3,275
Write-down of inventories — 179 —
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 333 223 2,775
Provision for planned cancellation of an underfunded retirement plan
of an acquired subsidiary — 172 —

Loss on planned cancellation of an underfunded retirement plan 
of an acquired subsidiary 180 — 1,500

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from newly consolidated subsidiary:
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable 837 (752) 6,975
Decrease in inventories 293 1,192 2,442
Decrease in notes and accounts payable (1,435) (1,636) (11,958)
Increase (decrease) in liability for retirement benefits, net of provision 592 (5) 4,933
Increase in corporation tax receivable (1,094) — (9,117)

Other — net (67) 661 (559)
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,603 4,234 46,691

Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,599) (2,093) (13,325)
Purchases of software and other assets (845) (924) (7,042)
Decrease (increase) in investments in and advances to affiliates 15 (7) 125
Payments for purchases of investment securities (339) (32) (2,825)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 20 45 167
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 162 246 1,350
Other — net 326 653 2,717

Net cash used in investing activities (2,260) (2,112) (18,833)

Financing Activities:
Increase in short-term bank loans — net (223) 828 (1,858)
Proceeds from borrowing of long-term debt 623 50 5,192
Repayments of long-term debt (2,010) (914) (16,750)
Cash dividends paid (483) (481) (4,025)
Other — net 59 (51) 491

Net cash used in financing activities (2,034) (568) (16,950)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents (238) 289 (1,983)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,071 1,843 8,925
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 9,182 7,339 76,517
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year ¥10,253 ¥ 9,182 $ 85,442

Additional Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid ¥ 193 ¥ 196 $ 1,608
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed by acquisitions:

Assets acquired 2,111 16,827 17,592
Liabilities assumed (2,136) (3,261) (17,800)

Non-cash investing and financing activity
Issuance of new shares in stock-for-stock transaction:

Common stock 2,124 — 17,700
Capital surplus 3,175 — 26,458

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Sysmex Corporation and Subsidiaries
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Sysmex Corporation and Subsidiaries

1. BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese
Securities and Exchange Law and its related accounting regulations,
and in conformity with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects
as to application and disclosure requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards. The consolidated financial
statements are not intended to present the financial position, results
of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in countries and
jurisdictions other than Japan.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain
reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the
consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to
present them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside
Japan.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2003
include the accounts of Sysmex Corporation (the “Company”) and
29 (27 in 2002) subsidiaries (together, the “Companies”).

Under the control or influence concept, those companies over
whose operations the Parent, directly or indirectly, is able to
exercise control are fully consolidated, and those companies over
which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence
are accounted for by the equity method.

Investments in an affiliated company (3 affiliated companies in
2002) are accounted for by the equity method.

The excess of the cost of the Company’s investments in
subsidiaries and an affiliate over its equity in the net assets at the
respective dates of acquisition, is amortized over a period of five
years.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included
in assets resulting from transactions within the Companies has been
eliminated.
b. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily
convertible into cash and that are exposed to insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents include time deposits and
mutual funds investing in bonds, all of which mature or become
due within three months of the date of acquisition.
c. Short-term Investments and Investment Securities

Short-term investments and investment securities are classified
and accounted for, depending on management’s intent, as follows:
i) trading securities, which are held for the purpose of earning
capital gains in the near term, are reported at fair value, and the
related unrealized gains and losses are included in earnings, ii) held-
to-maturity debt securities, which are expected to be held to
maturity with the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are
reported at amortized cost and iii) available-for-sale securities,
which are not classified as either of the aforementioned securities,
are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of
applicable taxes, reported as a separate component of shareholders’
equity.

Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost
determined by the moving-average method.

For other than temporary declines in fair value, investment
securities are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.
d. Allowance for Doubtful Notes and Accounts

The allowance for doubtful notes and accounts is stated at
amounts considered to be appropriate based on the Companies’
past credit loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in
the receivables outstanding.
e. Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost determined by the average method
for the Company and its domestic subsidiaries, and at the lower of
cost, determined by the first-in, first-out method, or market for
foreign subsidiaries.
f. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment of the Company and its domestic
subsidiaries is computed substantially by the declining-balance
method except that buildings are depreciated by the straight-line
method, at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the assets,
while the straight-line method is principally applied to the property,
plant and equipment of foreign subsidiaries.

The range of useful lives is principally from 31 to 50 years for
buildings and structures, and from 7 to 12 years for machinery and
equipment.
g. Software

Software is stated at cost, net of accumulated amortization.
Amortization is computed by the straight-line method based on the
useful lives of 3 to 5 years estimated by the Company and its
subsidiaries.
h. Goodwill

Goodwill on purchases of specific businesses and consolidation
goodwill are carried at cost less accumulated amortization, which is
calculated by the straight-line method over 5 years.
i. Liability for Retirement Benefits

The Company has a non-contributory funded pension plan and
contributory funded retirement plans covering substantially all of
its employees.

Effective April 1, 2000, the Companies adopted a new
accounting standard for employees’ retirement benefits and
accounted for the liability for retirement benefits based on projected
benefit obligations and plan assets at the balance sheet date.

The transitional obligation of ¥553 million ($4,608 thousand),
determined as of April 1, 2000, is amortized over five years and
presented under “Other-net” in the consolidated statements of
income.

Unfunded retirement benefits for the Company’s directors and
corporate auditors are provided at the estimated amount which
would be required if such individuals retired at the balance sheet
date.
j. Foreign Currency Transactions

All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen
at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange
gains and losses from translation are recognized in the consolidated
statements of income to the extent that they are not hedged by
forward exchange contracts.
k. Foreign Currency Financial Statements

The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign
subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the current exchange
rate as of the balance sheet date except for shareholders’ equity,
which is translated at the historical rate. Differences arising from
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such translation were shown as “Foreign currency translation
adjustments” as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Revenue and expense accounts of consolidated foreign
subsidiaries are translated into yen at the average exchange rate.
l. Leases

All leases of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are
accounted for as operating leases. Under Japanese accounting
standards for leases, finance leases that are deemed to transfer
ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be capitalized,
while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted for as
operating lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information
is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial statements.

Finance leases of certain overseas subsidiaries are accounted for
as capital leases.
m. Research and Development

Research and development costs are charged to income as
incurred. Such costs were ¥4,970 million ($41,417 thousand) and
¥4,130 million for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.
n. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax
income included in the consolidated statements of income. The
asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets
and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax
bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by
applying currently enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.

Certain overseas subsidiaries provide for deferred income taxes
relating to temporary differences in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in each country.
o. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Companies use foreign exchange forward contracts and
interest rate swaps to manage their exposure to fluctuations in
foreign exchange and interest rates. The Companies do not enter
into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to
major international financial institutions, the Companies do not
anticipate any losses arising from credit risk. Derivative transactions
entered into by the Companies have been made in accordance with
internal policies, which regulate the authorization of such
transactions.

Derivative financial instruments and foreign currency
transactions are classified and accounted for as follows: a) all
derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured
at fair value, and gains or losses on derivative transactions are
recognized in the income statement and b) for derivatives used for
hedging purposes, if derivatives qualify for hedge accounting
because of high correlation and effectiveness between the hedging
instruments and the hedged items, gains or losses on derivatives are
deferred until maturity of the hedged transactions.

The foreign currency forward contracts are utilized to hedge
foreign currency exposures from trade receivables related to export
sales. Such trade receivables denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the contracted rates if the forward contracts qualify for
hedge accounting.

The interest rate swaps that qualify for hedge accounting and
meet specific matching criteria are not remeasured at market value
but the differential paid or received under the swap agreements is
recognized and included in interest expense or income.
p. Per Share Information

Effective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted a new accounting
standard for earnings per share of common stock issued by the
Accounting Standards Board of Japan. Under the new standard,
basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income

available to common shareholders, which is more precisely
computed than under previous practices, by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively
adjusted for stock splits.

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if securities were exercised or converted into common
stock. Diluted net income per share of common stock assumes full
conversion of the outstanding convertible notes and bonds at the
beginning of the year (or at the time of issuance) with an applicable
adjustment for related interest expense, net of tax, and full exercise
of outstanding warrants. Basic net income and diluted net income
per share for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 are
computed in accordance with the new standard.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income are dividends applicable to the
respective years including dividends to be paid after the end of the
year, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.
q. Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the fiscal 2003 presentation. These changes had no impact on
previously reported results of operations or shareholders’ equity.

3. TRANSLATIONS INTO UNITED STATES DOLLARS
The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen.

The United States dollar amounts included herein are presented
solely for convenience and have been translated from the yen
amounts at the rate of ¥120=$1, the approximate exchange rate at
March 31, 2003. The translations should not be construed as
representations that the yen amounts could be converted into
United States dollars at that or any other rate.

4. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENTS
Short-term investments and investment securities as of March

31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Current:

Time deposits other than cash equivalents ¥ 156 ¥ 65 $ 1,300

Debt securities — 59 —

Investment trust and other — 19 —

Total ¥ 156 ¥ 143 $ 1,300

Non-current:

Marketable equity securities ¥1,384 ¥1,435 $11,533

Investment trust and other 131 177 1,092

Unquoted equity securities 160 154 1,333

Total ¥1,675 ¥1,766 $13,958

All marketable and investment securities as of March 31, 2003
and 2002 were classified as available-for-sale. Fair values of
unquoted equity securities are not readily determinable. The
carrying amounts and aggregate fair values at March 31, 2003 and
2002 were as follows:

Millions of Yen

2003

Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Equity securities ¥1,174 ¥314 ¥104 ¥1,384

Investment trust and other 177 — 46 131

Total ¥1,351 ¥314 ¥150 ¥1,515
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Millions of Yen

2002

Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Equity securities ¥1,266 ¥359 ¥190 ¥1,435

Debt securities 59 — — 59

Investment trust and other 197 — 1 196

Total ¥1,522 ¥359 ¥191 ¥1,690

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2003

Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Equity securities $  9,783 $2,617 $ 867 $11,533

Investment trust and other 1,475 — 383 1,092

Total $11,258 $2,617 $1,250 $12,625

Proceeds from sales of investment securities for the years ended
March 31, 2003 and 2002 were ¥77 million ($642 thousand) and
¥51 million, respectively. Gross realized gains on these sales,
computed on the moving average cost basis, were ¥27 million ($225
thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2003. Gross realized gains
and losses were ¥10 million and ¥5 million, respectively for the year
ended March 31, 2002.

Investments in and advances to affiliates at March 31, 2003 and
2002 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Initial investment at cost ¥12 ¥ 160 $100

Equity interest in accumulated deficit 16 (101) 133

Advances — 6 —

Total ¥28 ¥ 65 $233

Additionally, at March 31, 2002, included in other liabilities is an
amount of ¥46 million representing the Company’s equity interest
in the accumulated deficit of an affiliate exceeding the Company’s
initial investment in that affiliate, whose operations the Company
continues to support as an integral part of their business.

5. INVENTORIES
Inventories at March 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Finished products ¥ 3,806 ¥ 5,009 $31,717

Work in process 774 800 6,450

Raw materials 2,205 1,853 18,375

Supplies 159 47 1,324

Merchandise 4,418 3,492 36,817

Total ¥11,362 ¥11,201 $94,683

6. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Short-term bank loans were principally represented by bank

overdrafts. Weighted average per annum interest rates of short-term
bank loans at March 31, 2003 and 2002 were 2.7% and 5.3%,
respectively.

Long-term debt at March 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the
following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Loans from banks, due through 2008, 
with interest ranging from 1.1% to 4.2% 
for 2003 (from 1.0% to 4.4% for 2002):

Collateralized ¥ 353 ¥ — $ 2,942

Unsecured 3,506 4,694 29,216

Total 3,859 4,694 32,158

Unsecured 0.2% convertible bonds 
due 2004 4,999 5,000 41,658

Total 8,858 9,694 73,816

Less current portion (6,856) (1,665) (57,133)

Long-term debt, less current portion ¥ 2,002 ¥ 8,029 $ 16,683

The 0.2% convertible bonds due 2004 outstanding at March 31,
2003 were convertible into 2,016 thousand shares of common stock
of the Company at the conversion price of ¥2,480 ($20.67) per
share, subject to an anti-dilutive provision.

The conversion prices of the convertible bonds are subject to
adjustments in certain circumstances.

At March 31, 2003, annual maturities of long-term debt were as
follows:

Millions Thousands of 
Year ending March 31: of Yen U.S. Dollars

2004 ¥6,856 $57,133

2005 1,791 14,925

2006 145 1,208

2007 31 258

2008 35 292

Total ¥8,858 $73,816

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for the
above collateralized long-term debt at March 31, 2003, were as
follows:

Millions Thousands of 
of Yen U.S. Dollars

Land ¥185 $1,542

Buildings and structures 97 808

Total ¥282 $2,350

7. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Company and its certain subsidiaries have retirement

benefit plans for employees. Under most circumstances, employees
terminating their employment are entitled to retirement benefits
determined based on the rate of pay at the time of termination,
years of service and certain other factors. Employees are entitled to
larger payments if the termination is involuntary, as opposed to by
retirement at the mandatory retirement age or by death.

Certain subsidiaries have non-contributory unfunded retirement
benefit plans and certain overseas subsidiaries have defined
contribution pension plans.
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The liability (assets) for employees’ retirement benefits at March
31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Projected benefit obligation ¥ 6,165 ¥ 5,338 $ 51,375

Fair value of plan assets (3,955) (4,294) (32,958)

Unrecognized actuarial loss (1,393) (743) (11,608)

Unrecognized transitional obligation (221) (332) (1,842)

Net liability (assets) ¥ 596 ¥ (31) $ 4,967

The net assets for employees’ retirement benefits at March 31,
2002 comprised ¥52 million assets on the books of the Company,
and ¥21 million liabilities on the books of its subsidiaries,
respectively.

The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended
March 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Service cost ¥ 749 ¥ 557 $ 6,242

Interest cost 134 135 1,117

Expected return on plan assets (76) (111) (633)

Recognized actuarial loss 157 51 1,308

Amortization of transitional obligation 111 111 925

Provision for planned cancellation of 
an underfunded retirement plan of 
an acquired subsidiary — 172 —

Loss on planned cancellation of an 
underfunded retirement plan of 
an acquired subsidiary 180 — 1,500

Additional payments for early retirement — 29 —

Net periodic benefit costs ¥1,255 ¥ 944 $10,459

Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002
are set forth as follows:

2003 2002

Discount rate 2.5% 2.5%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 3.0% 3.25 - 4.5%

Recognition period of actuarial gain/loss 5 years 5 years

Amortization period of transitional obligation 5 years 5 years

The Company also has recorded a liability for an unfunded
retirement benefit plan covering all of its directors and corporate
auditors in the amount of ¥297 million ($2,475 thousand), and
¥298 million as of March 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Payment
of retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors is subject
to approval at the shareholders’ meeting.

8. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Japanese companies are subject to the Japanese Commercial

Code (the “Code”) to which certain amendments became effective
from October 1, 2001.

The Code was revised whereby common stock par value was
eliminated resulting in all shares being recorded with no par value
and at least 50% of the issue price of new shares is required to be
recorded as common stock and the remaining net proceeds as
additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus. The
Code permits Japanese companies, upon approval of the Board of
Directors, to issue shares to existing shareholders without

consideration as a stock split. Such issuance of shares generally does
not give rise to changes within the shareholders’ accounts.

The revised Code also provides that an amount at least equal to
10% of the aggregate amount of cash dividends and certain other
appropriations of retained earnings associated with cash outlays
applicable to each period shall be appropriated as a legal reserve (a
component of retained earnings) until such reserve and additional
paid-in capital equals 25% of common stock. The amount of total
additional paid-in capital and legal reserve that exceeds 25% of the
common stock may be available for dividends by resolution of the
shareholders. In addition, the Code permits the transfer of a portion
of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve to the common stock
by resolution of the Board of Directors.

The revised Code eliminated restrictions on the repurchase and
use of treasury stock allowing Japanese companies to repurchase
treasury stock by a resolution of the shareholders at the general
shareholders’ meeting and dispose of such treasury stock by
resolution of the Board of Directors beginning April 1, 2002. The
repurchased amount of treasury stock cannot exceed the amount
available for future dividend plus amount of common stock,
additional paid-in capital or legal reserve to be reduced in the case
where such reduction was resolved at the general shareholders’
meeting.

The amount of retained earnings available for dividends under
the Code was ¥35,322 million ($294,350 thousand) as of March 31,
2003, based on the amount recorded in the parent company’s
general books of account. In addition to the provision that requires
an appropriation for a legal reserve in connection with the cash
payment, the Code imposes certain limitations on the amount of
retained earnings available for dividends.

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting held
subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends are applicable.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid upon resolution of
the Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations imposed by the
Code.

On June 29, 2000, the Company’s shareholders approved a stock
option plan for the Company’s directors and key employees to
purchase up to 460 thousand shares of the Company’s common
stock in the period from April 1, 2001 to June 28, 2004. On July 27,
2000 the options were granted at an exercise price of ¥3,512 per
share. Options are exercisable with respect to all shares on or after
April 1, 2001. The Company plans to issue new shares upon exercise
of the options. All options expire and are void unless exercised on
or before June 28, 2004.

On April 1, 2002, the Company acquired the remaining shares of
International Reagents Corporation, a consolidated subsidiary, in a
stock-for-stock transaction. The Company issued 2,123,820 shares
of common stock with a fair value of ¥5,298 million ($44,150
thousand) in connection with the transaction. International
Reagents Corporation produces and sells reagents primarily to the
Japanese market.

9. INCOME TAXES
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to

Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate,
resulted in a normal effective statutory tax rate of approximately
41% for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002. Foreign
subsidiaries are subject to income taxes of the countries in which
they operate.
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The tax effects of significant temporary differences and loss
carryforwards which result in deferred tax assets and liabilities at
March 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Deferred Tax Assets (Current):

Intercompany profits ¥ 684 ¥ 742 $ 5,700

Inventory 124 151 1,033

Accrued expense and 
other current liabilities 461 307 3,842

Accrued enterprise tax 4 99 33

Tax loss carryforwards 28 105 233

Research and development 146 — 1,217

Other 148 107 1,233

Offsetting deferred tax liability (75) — (625)

Less valuation allowance (4) — (33)

1,516 1,511 12,633

Deferred Tax Assets (Non-Current):

Depreciation ¥      76 ¥ 75 $ 633

Liability for retirement benefits 282 125 2,350

Tax loss carryforwards 738 358 6,150

Software 243 277 2,025

Investment securities 384 268 3,200

Other 67 109 559

Offsetting deferred tax liability (802) (356) (6,683)

Less valuation allowance (548) (358) (4,567)

440 498 3,667

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Current):

Accrued enterprise tax ¥ 75 ¥ — $      625

Other — 1 —

Offsetting deferred tax asset (75) — (625)

— 1 —

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Non-Current):

Undistributed earnings of 
foreign subsidiaries ¥ 99 ¥ 67 $      825

Net unrealized gain on 
available-for-sale securities 79 71 658

Revaluation of land for 
consolidation 459 475 3,825

Investment loss for subsidiaries’ 
capital reduction by 
corporation tax law 498 — 4,150

Other 74 64 617

Offsetting deferred tax asset (802) (356) (6,683)

407 321 3,392

Net deferred tax assets ¥1,549 ¥1,687 $12,908

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates
and the actual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statement of income for the years ended March 31,
2003 and 2002 are as follows:

2003 2002

Normal effective statutory tax rate 40.3% 41.8%

Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 2.4 2.7

Non-taxable dividend income (28.1) (1.7)

Per capita levy 3.7 4.5

Foreign tax credit 1.6 (3.6)

Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries 4.2 5.2

Tax loss of subsidiaries 4.5 8.1

Goodwill (0.3) 1.8

Effect of tax rate reduction 0.8 —

Other - net (0.6) 3.2

Actual effective tax rate 28.5% 62.0%

On March 31, 2003, a tax reform law concerning enterprise tax
was enacted in Japan which changed the normal effective statutory
tax rate from 42% to 41%, effective for years beginning on or after
April 1, 2004. The effect of this change was to decrease deferred tax
assets-non-current by ¥32 million ($267 thousand), increase
income taxes-deferred by ¥34 million ($283 thousand), and increase
unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities by ¥2 million ($16
thousand) in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2003.

Certain subsidiaries have tax loss carryforwards available to
offset future taxable income as of March 31, 2003 of approximately
¥1,974 million ($16,450 thousand) which will expire in years 2017
through 2021.

10. LEASES
Total lease payments under finance leases that do not transfer

ownership of the leased property to the lessee were ¥1,412 million
($11,767 thousand) and ¥712 million for the years ended March 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Pro forma information of leased property under finance leases
that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee
on an “as if capitalized” basis for the years ended March 31, 2003
and 2002, was as follows:

Machinery and Equipment

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Acquisition cost ¥5,613 ¥4,137 $46,775

Accumulated depreciation 2,182 1,670 18,183

Net leased property ¥3,431 ¥2,467 $28,592

Obligations under finance leases (including imputed interest
expense):

Machinery and Equipment

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Due within one year ¥1,382 ¥ 870 $11,517

Due after one year 2,069 1,597 17,242

Total ¥3,451 ¥2,467 $28,759
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Depreciation expense and interest expense under finance leases:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Depreciation expense ¥1,389 ¥712 $11,575

Interest expense 31 — 258

Depreciation expense and interest expense, which are not
reflected in the accompanying statements of income, are computed
by the straight-line method and the interest method, respectively.

Interest expense for the year ended March 31, 2002 was not
significant.

Obligations under operating leases (including imputed interest
expense):

Millions Thousands of
of Yen U.S. Dollars

Due within one year ¥ 54 $ 450

Due after one year 77 642

Total ¥131 $1,092

11. NET INCOME PER SHARE
Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net

income per share (“EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2003 and
2002 is as follows:

Millions Thousands
of Yen of Shares Yen Dollars

Weighted
Net Average 

Income Shares EPS

For the year ended March 31, 2003:

Basic EPS

Net income available to 
common shareholders ¥3,044 23,020,663 ¥132.20 $1.10

Effect of Dilutive Securities

Convertible bonds 6 2,015,792 — —

Diluted EPS

Net income for computation ¥3,050 25,036,455 ¥121.81 $1.02

For the year ended March 31, 2002:

Basic EPS

Net income available to 
common shareholders ¥1,229 20,909,149 ¥ 58.80

Effect of Dilutive Securities

Convertible bonds 7 1,612,903 —

Diluted EPS

Net income for computation ¥1,236 22,522,052 ¥ 54.88

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions of the Company with affiliates for the years ended

March 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Sales ¥ — ¥ 46 $      —

Purchase 1,185 1,268 9,875

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a. The following appropriations of retained earnings at March 31,

2003 were approved at the shareholders’ general meeting of the
Company held on June 26, 2003:

Millions Thousands of
of Yen U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥14 ($0.12) per share ¥322 $2,683

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 81 675

b. Also at the shareholders’ general meeting the Company was
authorized to repurchase up to 2,300 thousand shares of the
Company’s common stock for an aggregate amount of ¥7,000
million.

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION
a. Operations in Different Industries

The Companies’ main operations are to manufacture and sell
laboratory testing instruments and reagents used by clinical
laboratories around the world. Under Japanese accounting
regulations, the Companies are not required to disclose industry
segment information because their main industry segment
represented more than 90% of their operations.
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b. Foreign Operations
Information about operations by geographic area for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized below.

Millions of Yen

Eliminations/ Consoli-
For the Year Ended March 31, 2003 Japan Americas Europe Asia Pacific Total Corporate dated

Net sales to outside customers ¥31,371 ¥6,349 ¥14,525 ¥5,008 ¥57,253 ¥ — ¥57,253

Interarea transfer 13,575 8 105 86 13,774 (13,774) —

Total net sales 44,946 6,357 14,630 5,094 71,027 (13,774) 57,253

Operating expenses 41,292 6,592 13,393 4,943 66,220 (14,266) 51,954

Operating income (loss) ¥ 3,654 ¥ (235) ¥  1,237 ¥ 151 ¥ 4,807 ¥ 492 ¥  5,299

Assets ¥57,815 ¥3,474 ¥  7,162 ¥4,123 ¥72,574 ¥  (6,125) ¥66,449

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Eliminations/ Consoli-
For the Year Ended March 31, 2003 Japan Americas Europe Asia Pacific Total Corporate dated

Net sales to outside customers $261,425 $52,908 $121,042 $41,733 $477,108 $ — $477,108

Interarea transfer 113,125 66 875 717 114,783 (114,783) —

Total net sales 374,550 52,974 121,917 42,450 591,891 (114,783) 477,108

Operating expenses 344,100 54,933 111,608 41,192 551,833 (118,883) 432,950

Operating income (loss) $ 30,450 $ (1,959) $ 10,309 $ 1,258 $ 40,058 $ 4,100 $ 44,158

Assets $481,792 $28,950 $ 59,683 $34,358 $604,783 $ (51,041) $553,742

Millions of Yen

Eliminations/ Consoli-
For the Year Ended March 31, 2002 Japan Americas Europe Asia Pacific Total Corporate dated

Net sales to outside customers ¥25,497 ¥5,654 ¥12,045 ¥4,336 ¥47,532 ¥ — ¥47,532

Interarea transfer 11,025 4 102 30 11,161 (11,161) —

Total net sales 36,522 5,658 12,147 4,366 58,693 (11,161) 47,532

Operating expenses 33,658 5,940 11,442 4,514 55,554 (11,439) 44,115

Operating income (loss) ¥ 2,864 ¥ (282) ¥ 705 ¥ (148) ¥ 3,139 ¥ 278 ¥ 3,417

Assets ¥57,158 ¥3,816 ¥ 6,619 ¥4,855 ¥72,448 ¥ (5,946) ¥66,502

c. Net Sales to Foreign Customers
Net sales to foreign customers for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2003 2002 2003

Americas ¥ 6,377 ¥ 5,698 $ 53,142

Europe 14,549 12,098 121,242

Asia Pacific 5,875 5,112 48,958

Total ¥26,801 ¥22,908 $223,342
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To the Board of Directors of Sysmex Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sysmex Corporation and subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen.  These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards, procedures and practices generally accepted
and applied in Japan.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Sysmex Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2003 and 2002,
and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our
opinion, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 3.  Such U.S. dollar
amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

June 26, 2003

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Tohmatsu & Co.
Osaka Kokusai Building
3-13, Azuchimachi 2-chome,
Chuo-ku, Osaka 541-0052, Japan

Te l:+81-6-6261-1381
Fax:+81-6-6261-1238
www.tohmatsu.co.jp
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MAJOR PRODUCTS

HST-N330:
The HST series offers fully automated blood cell count-
ing, including white blood cell differentials, reticulo-
cyte analysis, preparation of smears and staining.
Multiple system configurations are available to meet
the needs of individual laboratory requirements. 

XE-Alpha N:
Fully automated blood cell counting, white blood cell
differentials, reticulocyte analysis, preparation of
smears and staining are carried out by a compact
system, ensuring efficient workflow and improved test
precision.

XT-2000i:
This basic, compact model is supported
by the Sysmex Network Communication
System (SNCS), and features a viewer-
friendly screen and an easy-to-use oper-
ating system.

CA-7000:
The top of the CA series product line,
delivering ultra-fast throughput of 500
tests/hour (for simultaneous measure-
ment of PT/APTT). Auto batch control of
reagent names, lot numbers and expira-
tion dates is performed by a reagent con-
trol system with a bar code reader.

CA-1500:
This single unit incorporates the clot-
ting time method, the chromogenic
substrate method and the turbidimetric
immunoassay method. Its optimum
processing capacity for mid-sized labo-
ratories ensures efficient testing.

CA-500 series:
This compact, fully automated analyzer
offers the advantages of the CA series
such as high precision and ease of use.
Operation is simple, making it ideal for
emergency laboratories and small-scale
use.

CA-50:
A semi-automated system with a
compact design. Four independent
detection blocks provide four
independent test analyses. Suitable for
point-of-care testing. 

PAMIA-40i:
Incorporates Sysmex’s unique whole blood measurement technology. Because
the preparation time needed to separate blood serum is reduced, infectious
disease tests that used to take 30 minutes are completed in only 15 minutes.

ELSIA-FS1200:
This fully automated enzyme immunochemistry analyzer offers a measuring time of
approximately 20 minutes, a high throughput of 180 tests/minute, and simultaneous
measurement of 12 different test items. Enables real-time random access.

SYSTEMIZATION

HEMATOLOGY

HEMOSTASIS

IMMUNOCHEMISTRY

XE-2100:
With its networking capability, ability to
coordinate with other Sysmex products,
high expandability, and potential for
enhanced functioning through software
upgrades, the XE-2100 is Sysmex’s flag-
ship model.

Suitable
for POC

HEG-50S:
White blood cell differentials are automatically per-
formed using digital imaging technology. The blood
cell images generated are then filed into the LAFIA
database for examination in various clinical settings via
an information network.

KX-21N:
Provides blood test data such as the white
blood cell three-part differential in less
than one minute through simple
operation. Can be linked to an informa-
tion system via a LAN connection.

POCH-100i:
Featuring compact size and easy opera-
tion, this counter allows high-precision
measurement results and greater simpli-
fication of hematology testing diagnostic
and therapeutic settings.

Suitable
for POC
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UF-100:
Fully automated, high precision, quantitative analysis of
urine sediment using Sysmex’s proprietary technology
involving flow cytometry. Further improves the reliabili-
ty of urinalysis.

UF-50:
The sample is drawn directly from the collection cup
into the unit. Offers full automation and high precision
in a compact unit.

Hemo-LIAS200:
This fully automated fecal occult blood testing analyzer
uses biodegradable containers for stool samples.
Convenient for both the person performing the test and
the person undergoing the test.

FPIA-2100:
This advanced particle analyzer with CCD camera pro-
vides not only the particle distribution of powder
grains but also particle images and shape information
at the same time.

SD-2000:
Through an ideal combination of the electric resistance
method and sheath flow technology, particle distribu-
tion is obtained without complex correction and analy-
sis, and the sizes and numbers of particles are deter-
mined more accurately.

CDA-500:
This basic, easy-to-operate particle counter measures
the distribution of particles and cells with high
precision.

ASTRIM SU:
By measuring near-infrared spectroscopic images, this system measures hemoglobin
within peripheral blood vessels without requiring blood sampling.

A full lineup of reagents for
all laboratory testing needs,
including hematology,
hemostasis, immunochem-
istry, urinalysis, and bio-
chemistry. 

MOLIS:
The MOLIS Laboratory Information System forms the core of Sysmex’s total solutions
package. It not only increases efficiency but also optimizes all aspects of laboratory
operation, including patient services.

INFORMATICS

URINALYSIS / FECAL OCCULT BLOOD TESTING

PARTICLE ANALYSIS FOR INDUSTRIAL APPLICATIONS

NEW BUSINESS (HEALTHCARE) REAGENTS

Suitable
for POC

LAFIA: 
This system files blood images together with patients’ demographic information.
Network-compliant, it allows access to the image database from anywhere in the
hospital through a network.
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Japan

INTERNATIONAL REAGENTS 

CORPORATION*
4-4-4, Takatsukadai, Nishi-ku, Kobe,

Hyogo 651-2271, Japan

Tel: (+81) 78-991-6042

Fax: (+81) 78-991-6142

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: December 1969

MEDICA CO., LTD.

323-3 Miyaoki, Yumesaki-cho, Shikama-gun,

Hyogo 671-2121, Japan

Tel: (+81) 7933-5-2080

Fax: (+81) 7933-7-2806

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: March 1978

TOA MEDICAL CO., LTD.

1-5-1, Wakinohama-kaigandori, Chuo-ku,

Kobe, Hyogo 651-0073, Japan

Tel: (+81) 78-230-0618

Fax: (+81) 78-230-0619

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: July 1992

SYSMEX LOGISTICS CO., LTD.

17 Takumidai, Ono, Hyogo 675-1322, Japan

Tel: (+81) 794-64-2326

Fax: (+81) 794-64-2310

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: December 1997

RA SYSTEMS CORP.**
1850-3 Hirookanomura, Shiojiri, 

Nagano 399-0702, Japan

Tel: (+81) 263-54-2251

Fax: (+81) 263-54-2254

Equity Ownership by Group: 96.4%

Established: March 1978

North and South America

SYSMEX AMERICA, INC.***
1 Nelson C. White Parkway,

Mundelein, IL 60060, U.S.A.

Tel: (+1) 847-996-4500

Fax: (+1) 847-996-4505

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: October 1979

SYSMEX REAGENTS AMERICA, INC.

10716 Reagan Street, Los Alamitos,

CA 90720, U.S.A.

Tel: (+1) 562-799-4001

Fax: (+1) 562-799-9702

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: December 1993

SYSMEX DO BRASIL INDUSTRIA 

E COMERCIO LTDA.

Rua Professor Algacyr Munhoz Mader,

3775-Bloco C - CIC,

Curitiba-Parana-Brasil-CEP 81350-010

Tel: (+55) 41-246-1314

Fax: (+55) 41-248-9182

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: December 1998

Europe

SYSMEX EUROPE GMBH

Bornbarch 1, 22848 Norderstedt, Germany

Tel: (+49) 40-527260

Fax: (+49) 40-52726100

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: October 1980

SYSMEX DEUTSCHLAND GMBH

Bornbarch 1, 22848 Norderstedt, Germany

Tel: (+49) 40-5341020

Fax: (+49) 40-5232302

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: March 1995

WELLTEC GMBH

Siemensstrasse 26a, D-12247 Berlin-Steglitz,

Germany

Tel: (+49) 1805-935-583

Fax: (+49) 1805-935-582

Equity Ownership by Group: 50.5%

Established: March 2002

SYSMEX UK LIMITED

Sunrise Parkway, Linford Wood (East),

Milton Keynes, Buckinghamshire,

MK14 6QF, U.K.

Tel: (+44) 1-908-669555

Fax: (+44) 1-908-669409

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: May 1991

SYSMEX BELGIUM S.A.

Rue Pres Champs 25B, 4671 Barchon, Belgium

Tel: (+32) 4-387-9393

Fax: (+32) 4-387-9394

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: September 1997

SYSMEX MOLIS S.A.

Rue Pres Champs 25B, 4671 Barchon, Belgium

Tel: (+32) 4-387-9393

Fax: (+32) 4-387-9394

Equity Ownership by Group: 75%

Established: September 1997

CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES
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SYSMEX FRANCE S.A.R.L.

Paris Nord II, 22, avenue des Nations, B.P.

50414 Villepinte, 95944 ROISSY-CDG Cedex,

France

Tel: (+33) 1-48-170190

Fax: (+33) 1-48-632350

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: February 2000

SYSMEX MOLIS IT SERVICES 

SLOVAKIA, S.R.O.

Chrobakova 29, 841-01 Bratislava, Slovakia

Tel: (+42) 126-453-3201

Fax: (+42) 126-428-1651

Equity Ownership by Group: 76%

Established: March 2001

Asia-Pacific

JINAN SYSMEX MEDICAL 

ELECTRONICS CO., LTD.

7493 Airport Road, Yaoqiang Town,

Licheng District, Jinan City, 

Shandong Province, China; PC.250107

Tel: (+86) 531-873-4440

Fax: (+86) 531-873-4442

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: June 1995

SYSMEX HONG KONG LIMITED

RM. 1008, 10/F., Tower One, China Hong Kong

City, Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Tel: (+852) 25435123

Fax: (+852) 25435181

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: December 1999

SYSMEX SHANGHAI LTD.

5th Floor, New Shanghai International Tower,

360 Pudong South Road, Pudong New Area,

Shanghai, 200120, China

Tel: (+86) 21-6886-3300

Fax: (+86) 21-6886-3355

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: January 2000

SYSMEX INFOSYSTEMS CHINA, LTD.

5th Floor, New Shanghai International Tower,

360 Pudong South Road, Pudong New Area,

Shanghai, 200120, China

Tel: (+86) 21-6886-2658

Fax: (+86) 21-6886-2271

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: July 2000

SYSMEX SAN TUNG CO., LTD.

1st F1., 11, Lane 6, Sec. 1, Hangchow S. Rd.,

Taipei, Taiwan R.O.C.

Tel: (+886) 2-2341-9290

Fax: (+886) 2-2341-9275

Equity Ownership by Group: 51%

Established: May 2000

SYSMEX SINGAPORE PTE LTD.

2 Woodlands Sector 1,

#01-06 Woodlands Spectrum,

Singapore 738068

Tel: (+65) 6221-3629

Fax: (+65) 6221-3687

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: February 1998

SYSMEX (MALAYSIA) SDN BHD

Lot 928, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, Jln SS

7/19 Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya,

Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (+60) 3-78041799

Fax: (+60) 3-78047821

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: April 1998

SYSMEX TRANSASIA BIO-MEDICALS 

PRIVATE LTD.

Transasia House Plot No. 8 Chandivali Studio

Road Mumbai-400 072, India

Tel: (+91) 22-857-5050

Fax: (+91) 22-857-3030

Equity Ownership by Group: 51%

Established: July 1998

SYSMEX (THAILAND) CO., LTD.

1539 Soi Latphrao 94, Latphrao Road,

Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310, Thailand

Tel: (+66) 2-559-3333

Fax: (+66) 2-539-8481

Equity Ownership by Group: 51%

Established: May 1999

MED-ONE CO., LTD.****
1539 Soi Latphrao 94, Latphrao Road,

Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310, Thailand

Tel: (+66) 2-559-3333

Fax: (+66) 2-539-8481

Equity Ownership by Group: 49%

Established: May 1999

SYSMEX DELPHIC LIMITED

384-386 Manukau Road, Epsom,

Auckland 1030, New Zealand

Tel: (+64) 9-630-3554

Fax: (+64) 9-630-8135

Equity Ownership by Group: 51%

Established: October 2001

WHOOSH TECHNOLOGY PTY LIMITED

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: November 1999

PT. SYSMEX INDONESIA*****
Wisma Kaimanis, Seventh floor, North wing,

Room No. 701, Jl. MT. Haryono Kav. 33, South

Jakarta, Indonesia

Tel: (+62) 21-7986005

Fax: (+62) 21-7986007

Equity Ownership by Group: 100%

Established: March 2002

* The ratio of shareholding was changed
from 50.8% to 100% on April 1, 2002.

** Change to consolidated company
from October 1, 2002.

*** SYSMEX CORPORATION OF AMERICA
and SYSMEX INFOSYSTEMS AMERICA,
INC. merged to form SYSMEX AMERICA,
INC. on May 31, 2003.

**** Company under the application of the
equity method

***** Established after April 2002

(As of June 27, 2003)
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A BRIEF HISTORY OF THE COMPANY

1968
February Toa Medical Electronics Co., Ltd. (presently Sysmex 

Corporation) was established with capital of ¥2.0
million to sell medical equipment such as automatic
blood cell counters manufactured by Toa Electric
Co., Ltd. (presently Toa Corporation). 

1972
February Acquired the Medical Electronics (ME) 

Equipment Division of Toa Electric Co., Ltd.

1973
June The Kakogawa Factory was established in 

Kakogawa, Hyogo Prefecture to house the Sales,
Development, Production and General Affairs
Divisions.

1978
February The new corporate brand name Sysmex was 

announced on the tenth anniversary of the
company’s establishment. 

1986
April The Techno Center was established in Nishi-ku, Kobe.

1989
May The corporate headquarters were moved to 

Chuo-ku, Kobe.

1991
February The Ono Factory was established in Ono, Hyogo 

Prefecture to house the Reagent Production Division. 

1995
March Formed an alliance with Dade International Inc.

(presently Dade Behring Inc.) for the sale of
coagulant products.

July Received ISO 9001 certification, an international 
standard for quality assurance.

November Listed on the Second Section of the Osaka Securities 
Exchange and capital increased to ¥3,384.9 million.

1996
July Listed on the Second Section of the Tokyo Stock 

Exchange.

1998
May Signed a basic agreement for global alliance 

concerning marketing and joint research with 
F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd. of Switzerland.

June Formed a distribution agreement for the European 
market with Malvern Instruments Ltd., a leading
manufacturer of particle analyzers.

October Company name was changed to Sysmex Corporation 
on the thirtieth anniversary of the company’s
establishment and the corporate headquarters were
moved to the new downtown area in east Kobe.

1999
January Formed a business alliance with Roche Diagnostics 

Corporation of the U.S. for sales and service of
hematology analyzers.

June Signed an agreement with Roche Diagnostics GmbH 
of Germany for sales and service of Roche’s point-of-
care (POC) products in Japan.

November Sysmex Europe GmbH’s Neumünster Factory 
received ISO 14001 certification, an international
standard for environmental management systems.

2000
March Promoted to the First Section of the Tokyo Stock 

Exchange and the Osaka Securities Exchange. 

First unsecured convertible bonds issued.

April Central Research Laboratories opened in the Techno 
Center.

Kakogawa Factory received ISO 14001 certification.

December Acquired 33.3 percent of shares in International 
Reagents Corporation and reached a comprehensive
agreement for technical collaboration.

2001
March The Ono Factory, Sysmex Logistics Co., Ltd. and 

Medica Co., Ltd. received ISO 14001 certification. The
African Service Center was established to provide
technical services in Africa.

August Increased holdings in International Reagents 
Corporation from 33.3 percent to 50.8 percent
through takeover bid in order to make IRC a
consolidated subsidiary.

2002
April International Reagents Corporation became a wholly-

owned subsidiary through a stock-for-stock exchange.
Capital increased to ¥5,872 million.

May Developed a genetic testing system that can detect
mestastic cancer of the lymph nodes within 15
minutes.

September Completed construction work to expand the
Kakogawa Factory, the Company’s main production
facility for instruments.

November Acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the cervical
cancer detection technology owned by U.S.-based
Matritech, Inc.

2003
April Sysmex and Toshiba Corporation jointly developed

minimally invasive technology for self-measurement
of blood glucose that does not require blood sampling.

May Signed an agreement with the University of Texas
M.D. Anderson Cancer Center, the leading cancer
treatment facility in the United States, to begin
clinical study of a new diagnostic method for
predicting the effectiveness of anti-cancer drugs.

July Reorganized its operating structure in the U.S.
through the establishment of a direct sales and
service network and mergers with local subsidiaries.
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SYSMEX CORPORATION

Established  February 20, 1968

Number of Employees 2,128 (consolidated basis)
1,106 (non-consolidated basis)

Fiscal Year April 1 - March 31  
Annual meeting held in June

Common Stock
Authorized: 74,836,000 shares

Issued: 23,033,423 shares

Paid-in Capital: ¥5,509 million

Listings: Tokyo Stock Exchange, 
First Section 
Osaka Securities Exchange,
First Section 

November 1995: Listed on Osaka Securities Exchange, 
Second Section

July 1996: Listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange, 
Second Section

March 2000: Listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange, First 
Section and Osaka Securities Exchange, 
First Section

Ticker Code: 6869

Transfer Agent: The Mitsubishi Trust and
Banking Corporation

Independent Auditor: Tohmatsu & Co.

(As of March 31, 2003)

Other Japanese 
Companies  22.64%

Foreign Investors  5.56%

Individuals and Others   
57.29%

Financial Institutions  14.37%

Securities Companies  0.14%

Offices
Head Office: 1-5-1, Wakinohama-kaigandori,

Chuo-ku, Kobe, Hyogo 651-0073, Japan
Tel: (+81) 78-265-0500
Fax: (+81) 78-265-0524

Techno Center: 4-4-4, Takatsukadai, Nishi-ku,
Kobe, Hyogo 651-2271, Japan
Tel: (+81) 78-991-1911

Kakogawa Factory: 314-2 Kitano, Noguchi-cho,
Kakogawa, Hyogo 675-0011, Japan
Tel: (+81) 794-24-1171

Ono Factory: 17 Takumidai, Ono,
Hyogo 675-1322, Japan
Tel: (+81) 794-62-7001

Sendai Branch: 1-23-4, Izumi-Chuo, Izumi-ku, 
Sendai 981-3133, Japan
Tel: (+81) 22-375-7751

Kitakanto Branch: 4-261-1, Yoshishiki-cho, Oomiya-ku,
Saitama 330-0843, Japan
Tel: (+81) 48-600-3888

Tokyo Branch: 1-24-1, Hongo, Bunkyo-ku,
Tokyo 113-0033, Japan
Tel: (+81) 3-3814-5046

Nagoya Branch: 3-85-1, Yashirodai, Meito-ku,
Nagoya 465-0092, Japan
Tel: (+81) 52-775-8101

Osaka Branch: 17-1, Enoki-cho, Suita,
Osaka 564-0053, Japan
Tel: (+81) 6-6337-8300

Hiroshima Branch: 3-17, Fukuro-machi, Naka-ku,
Hiroshima 730-0036, Japan
Tel: (+81) 82-248-9070

Fukuoka Branch: 4-9-24, Hakataeki-minami, Hakata-ku,
Fukuoka 812-0016, Japan
Tel: (+81) 92-411-4314

Japanese Sales Offices: Sapporo, Morioka, Nagano, Niigata, Chiba,
Yokohama, Shizuoka, Kanazawa, Kyoto, Kobe, 
Takamatsu, Okayama, Kagoshima
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Composition of Shareholders (As of March 31, 2003)

Stock Price Range & Trading Volume

Sysmex Corporation  | Annual Report 2003   41




